M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 19, 2001
9:09 AM

TAPES

SFC-01 # 46, Side A
SFC 01 # 46, Side B
SFC 01 # 47, Side A

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:09 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Loren Lenman

Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donal d O son

Senat or Al an Aust er man

Al so Attending: SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT; SENATOR JOHNNY ELLIS;
SENATOR JOHN TORGERSON; JANE DEMMVERT, Executive Director, Al aska
Conmi ssi on on Agi ng; ROSEMARY HAGAVI G Executive Director, Catholic
Community Services; SUZANNE PRI CE Executive Director, Fairbanks
Conmunity Mental Health Center and representative of Mental Health
Provi ders Associ ation of Al aska; RI CHARD RAI NERY, Acting Executive
Director, Alaska Mental Health Board; JAY LI VEY, Deput y
Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and Social Services; MARY
JACKSON, staff to Senator Torgerson; REMOND HENDERSON, Director,
Division of Admnistrative Services, Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf or ce Devel opnent

Attending via Tel econference: From Honer: JI'M BRADY, Kenai
Peni nsul a | ndependent Living Center; From Fairbanks: DAVID
JACOBSQON, State Independent Living Council; RUTH L'HOW DI EU,
Chair, State Independent Living Council; NAD NE HARGESH EMER,
Fai rbanks North Star Borough; From Mat-Su: TIM ANDERSON, Seni or
Service Provider and Director, Wasilla Area Seniors; R CHARD TUBBS,
Executive Director, Palnmer Senior Center; From Anchorage: STEVE VAN

SFC- 01 (1) 03/ 19/ 01



SANT, State Assessor, Division of Community and Business
Devel opnent, Department of Community and Econoni c Devel opnent

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SCR 7-HEALTH CARE COST REVI EW TASK FORCE

The Commttee heard fromthe sponsor, the Departnment of Health and
Soci al Services, and took public testinony. The bill was held in
Commi ttee.

SB  4-MUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON

The Comm ttee heard fromthe sponsor, the Departnent of Community
and Econoni c Devel opnent and the Fairbanks North Star Borough. A
commttee substitute was considered but not adopted. The bill was
held in Conmittee.

SB 137- ALASKA HUVAN RESOURCE | NVESTMENT COUNCI L

The Conmittee heard fromthe sponsor, and the Departnent of Labor
and Wor kf orce Devel opnent. An anmendnent was consi dered and adopt ed.
The bill was held in Comm ttee.

SB  6- MOBI LE HOVE PARK EVI CTI ON NOTI CE

The Committee heard from the sponsor and the bill was held in
Commi ttee.

#SCR7

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 7
Establishing a Health Care Cost Revi ew Task Force.

This was the first hearing for this resolution in the Senate
Fi nance Conmittee.

Senat or Green announced that while the Departnment of Health and
Soci al Servi ces Budget Subcomm ttee was addressing that
departnent's budget, the nmenbers were "surprised” at the growth of
the Medicaid program She enphasized the increasing costs and
subsequent inpacts to both the federal and state governnents. She
spoke of continued proposals for new matching fund prograns, but
stated that the question is how to continue to pay for existing
Medi cai d prograns.

Senator Green inforned that the Medicaid programin A aska expends

SFC- 01 (2) 03/ 19/ 01



approximately $10 million a week of conbined state and federa
funds. She calculated this equals about one-half billion dollars
annual ly. She pointed out that Medicaid is the second | argest state
program behind education. She ascertained several state agency
budgets could be conbined and still cost less than the cost of a
nont h of Medi cai d expenses.

Senator G een expressed the difficulties in exam ning the Mdicaid
expenses because there are "various |layers" of service providers,
vendors, agencies, departnents, individuals and nonprofit groups
that rely on Medicaid funds as a part of their on-going operations.

Senator Green stated the intent of this resolution is to establish
a group to investigate the reasons for the high costs and possibly
identify cost containing alternatives. This, she said would include
determ ning whether the state is participating in prograns not
mandated by the federal governnent, finding out if any prograns
could be restructured or privatized to have less inpact on the
state general fund and perhaps build a better program

Senator Green stressed there is no intent to "negatively inpact the
Medi cai d budget."

Co-Chair Kelly commented that any attenpt to reduce the budget is
benefi ci al .

JI M BRADY, Kenai Peninsul a I ndependent Living Center, testified via
tel econference fromHomer to request the Commttee keep in mnd the
costs required to care for disabled people. He stressed that for
many, Medicaid is the only method of health insurance. He noted
that providing care at the early stages of a condition could save
considerable noney in the long run. He referenced the "buy-in"
option that allows disabled individuals to pay for continued
Medi cai d coverage once they are enpl oyed.

Co-Chair Kelly noted that the discussion at this tinme is to
determ ne whether or not to formthe task force. He stated there
woul d be anot her opportunity to debate the issues before the task
force.

DAVI D JACOBSQN, Menber, State | ndependent Living Council, testified
via teleconference from Fairbanks in appreciation that the
Commttee was not yet setting the agenda for the task force
However, he enphasized that Medicaid is an essential program He
al so spoke of the necessity of treating illnesses in their early
stages rather then waiting for the condition to becone nore
serious. He spoke of the savings to the state in allowng the
elderly to remain in their comunity rather than an institution. He

SFC- 01 (3) 03/ 19/ 01



supported a proposed | anguage change prepared by the Departnent of
Heal th and Social Services. He explained this |anguage addresses
specific needs of the disabled and elderly and also gives
reconmendati ons on the nenbership of the task force to include
consuners. He comented on the Long-Term Care Task Force,
commendi ng the representation by all factions of the comunity.

TI M ANDERSON, Senior Service Provider and Director, Wasilla Area
Seniors, testified via tel econference from Mat-Su about the various
services provided to the elderly by Medicaid. He estinmated that 30
percent of Medicaid costs in his conmunity go to pay for senior
Servi ces.

Rl CHARD TUBBS, Executive Director, Palner Senior Center, testified
via tel econference from Mat-Su that he understood the reasons the
state wishes to reduce costs, but enphasized the necessity of hone
comunity based senior services. He referenced a state conducted
study that found that comunity based services cost much | ess than
nursing hone care. He wurged that the task force include
representation fromthe senior care comrunity.

JANE DEMVERT, Executive Director, Al aska Conm ssion on Aging,
testified in Juneau about the Long-Term Care Task Force. She stated
that there were recomendations of this task force that remains
uni npl enent ed. She suggested the new task force consider the work
and structure of the earlier task force. She stressed the | ack of
flexibility of insurance for elderly care.

ROSEMARY HAGAVI G Executive Director, Catholic Comrunity Servi ces,
testified in Juneau to echo the remarks of the previous testifiers.
She also noted that Alaska is one of only a few states that does
not provide Medicaid for Al zhei ner disease, which she stressed is a
growi ng portion of elderly needs. She spoke of the benefits of
providing care in the early stages of this disease. She hoped the
task force would consider this.

SUZANNE PRI CE Executive Director, Fairbanks Community Mental Health
Center and representative of Mental Health Provi ders Association of
Al aska, testified in Juneau sharing the nessage that cost-
contai nment has been included in the organization’s practice for a
nunber of years. She offered the groups input in the task force’s
efforts. She warned of the "dom no effect” when a task force nmakes
cost -cont ai nnent deci sions. She stressed, "Cost containment is a
tricky issue.” She said that the providers association has
know edge in this area and she requested they be allowed to
participate in the task force.

Senator Green noted that there would be a decrease in federa

SFC- 01 (4) 03/ 19/ 01



participation in Medicaid funding in the year 2002. She said it
needed to be decided how the state's general funds would be
prioritized. She ascertained that additional prograns would be
i ntroduced, making the need to prioritize greater.

RUTH L'HOW DIEU, Chair, State I|ndependent Living Council
testified via teleconference from Fairbanks, to advise the
Committee to proceed with caution in establishing the task force.
She stated that Medicaid is the nunber one form of nedical
i nsurance for people with disabilities. She recommended expandi ng
the Medicaid buy-in option. She |isted the annual cost of nursing
home treatnent as $96,809 per person. She stressed the need to
ensure people can remain in their own conmmunity, and return to
wor k. She supported the Departnment of Health and Social Services’
proposed | anguage.

RI CHARD RAI NERY, Acting Executive Director, Al aska Mental Health
Board testified in Juneau to reiterate other points raised. He
agreed that the proposed task force nenbership excludes severa
factions. He opined that health care users, payers and providers
should be included in the primary nenbership instead of ad hoc
nmenbers. He predicted that the task force would | earn that Medicaid
is a "very conplex subject” and he was concerned that the tinefrane
al | oned woul d be inadequate. He warned that the inpacts on access
to health care should be carefully considered, in the nental health
field. He spoke of the reliance on Medicaid by nany comunity
mental health care providers and the limted ability to replace
that funding from other sources. He pointed out that Al aska does
not have a health insurance parody clause, so private insurance is
not required to include nental health coverage.

JAY LIVEY, Deputy Commi ssioner, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services, testified in Juneau to voice concerns about the
resolution. He expressed that the task force is "narrowy charged"
in that it is only directed to review cost containnment. He
enphasi zed the "interrel ati onshi ps and conplexity of health care”
He stated that the departnent supports cost containnment and he
agreed that the cost of health care is rising. However, he said,
"cost containnment itself does not exist entirely in a vacuum"”

M. Lively shared there are three ways to reduce costs within a
health care program He listed them as reducing the nunber of
participants, lowering the reinbursenent rate and reducing the
anount of services. He pointed out that each of these would have
other ramfications on the health care system He stressed that
many elderly and disabled patients do not have other health
i nsurance options, due to preexisting conditions, |ack of incone to
purchase private insurance, and other factors.

SFC- 01 (5) 03/ 19/ 01



M. Lively spoke of the connection between publicly funded health
care prograns and | ocal health care economes. He explained that in
many snaller conmunities, there is a connection between Medicaid
funding for long-term care and the economc viability of small
rural hospitals. He stated that the Medicaid portion of |long-term
care funding keeps the hospitals operational. He al so noted that
Medi cai d funding for disabled patients provides funding to maintain
many nmental health care prograns. Wile he acknow edged that these
prograns do not serve Medicaid eligible patients exclusively,
w t hout the Medicaid funding, there would not be adequate private
funding incone to provide the services to any patients.

Senator Green asked if the w tness was addressing the inpact of
private insurance and subsidi zed Medicaid in providing | ower rates
to those individuals that pay for services wthout insurance.

M. Livey agreed there is an interrelationship between Mdicaid
paynents and the health care econony. He explained that if an
i ndi vidual does not have health care coverage, and nust seek
nmedi cal care, "sonebody has to pay for that." He said that the
"sonebody” is "the rest of the public that pays the health care
bill."

M. Lively qualified that "the worst" woul d not necessarily happen,
but stressed that because of the conplexity of the issue, if the
task force only addresses cost containnment, "it is going to mss
sonme of these connections. He was concerned that unless the scope
of the task force is broadened to include access, the inpact on
other health care economes and other providers, unintended
consequences could result.

M. Livey concluded suggesting that the task force nenbership
shoul d i nclude additional representation fromrecipients, famlies
of recipients or advocates for recipients as well as additiona
menbership for the Adm nistration.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.

#SB4
CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 4(CRA)
"An Act relating to a mandatory exenption from muni ci pal
property taxes for certain residences; and providing for an
effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance

SFC- 01 (6) 03/ 19/ 01



Conmittee.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, sponsor, stated the intent is to offer
nore flexibility for establishing and setting |ocal property taxes
and tax relief. He noted that current statutes contain a provision
to allow local governnments to offer a ten-percent property tax
exenption for residents with property within the governnent's
boundaries by "a package of an ordinance” that is voted on by the
gener al popul ous.

Senator Therriault shared that the Senate Conmunity and Regi onal
Affairs conmttee substitute proposes to increase that anount to a
total cap of $50,000 worth of valuation. He referred to a proposed
conmttee substitute, 22-LS0190\P, saying it reduces this anount to
$40, 000. He al so noted the proposed commttee substitute addresses
a concern that was raised by service areas in the Fairbanks North
Star Borough (FNSB). He explained if the |ocal governnent exercised
an increased residential property tax exenption, the revenue to the
service area would decrease. To rectify this, he said, the
proposed conmittee substitute would adjunct the service area ml
rate from the residential property tax exenption. Therefore, he
said as the local governnment chose to shift the property tax
exception, there would be no inpact on the anmount of noney
generated by the service areas. He noted that many service areas in
t he Fairbanks area operate on "very thin budgets" and that it was
not his intent to inpact them

Senator Therriault addressed a concern rai sed by Senator Torgerson
in the Senate Community and Regional Affairs Conmttee that there
woul d be adverse inpact to the state treasury. Senator Therriault
expl ai ned the issue regarding conmunities that have a portion of
the Trans Al askan Pipeline passing through it, referring to a
drawi ng showi ng the service area and borough. [Copy on file.] He
stated that the local property tax is credited against the oil and
gas property taxes owed to the state treasury. He stated that the
total cap on oil and gas properties is 20-mls.

Senator Therriault noted that some boroughs, such as the FNSB, are
considering alternate revenue sources such as a sales tax or user
fees. However, he stressed that the service area does not have
those options to shift lost revenues and could only collect
property taxes. He proposed excluding the extra mls intended for
the service areas fromthe residential property tax exenptions. He
concluded that this would mtigate Senator Torgerson’s concerns.

Senator Therriault then noted that Section 1 of the proposed

commttee substitute is added to provide senior citizens and
veterans tax exenptions, which he said are in current statute. He

SFC- 01 (7) 03/ 19/ 01



detailed that a residence owed by a senior or veteran that
receives the property tax exenption and that is sold during the
cal endar year to a buyer that does not qualify for the exenption,

is still exenpted fromthe tax during that year. He said the | oca

governnment has no nethod to collect property taxes from the new
owner for the renmainder of the year. He stated that the proposed
commttee substitute allows |ocal governnents to assess and col | ect
property taxes fromthe new owner for the partial year. He pointed
out that this |language is permssive and does not require the | oca

governnent to conply.

Senator Wl ken noved to adopt CS SB 4, 22-LS0190\P as a working
draft.

Co-Chair Donley objected. He stated that he prefers the Senate
Community and Regi onal Affairs conmttee substitute.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the reason Co-Chair Donley objected is
because the |anguage in version "P'" is "not strong enough" to
preclude the possibility that state revenues woul d drop because of
t he exenpti on.

Co-Chair Donley affirmed that was one of his concerns.
Co-Chair Kelly shared that concern.

Senator Therriault spoke to Section 1 of version "P' that allows
the local government to assess part of the annual tax if the
property transfers froma senior citizen to a person who does not
qualify for a tax exenption. He el aborated the original version of
the bill states, "shall" and the proposed | anguage reads "may".

Senator Therriault next addressed Section 2 of the proposed
commttee substitute, saying it "offers a tool." He expl ained that
this provision does not mandate the | ocal governnent increase the
personal property tax exenption. He stated that the |ocal
governnents have the option of offering a tax break to residenti al
property owners and recoup the | ost revenue "anyway they see fit."
He noted the amobunt was set in statute in 1974, and has not been
i ncreased since then.

Senator Therriault enphasized that there would be little inpact to
the state treasury. He elaborated that because of the failed
property tax cap ballot proposal, he did not think that | ocal
governnments woul d provide a tax exenption for sonme residents then
raise the overall m| rate. He expressed that this would shift the
tax burden fromresidents to businesses and rental property, which
he did not think | ocal governnents would want to do. He suggested

SFC- 01 (8) 03/ 19/ 01



that if | ocal governnents proposed this, there would be opposition
from busi ness owners and renters and such a neasure would require
vot er approval .

SFC 01 # 46, Side B 09:56 AM

Senator W/ ken addressed Co-Chair Donley's objection. Senator
Wl ken stressed that without Section 2 of the proposed conmttee
substitute, "the bill is essentially dead." He shared that the FNSB
was attenpting to respond to the failed ten-m| property tax cap
bal |l ot neasure fromthe previous election. He expressed his desire
for the legislature to assist |ocal governnents in their revenue
efforts. He listed two things that woul d not happen in the FNSB. He
said the assenbly would not increase m| rates to make up for this
exenption nor would it drastically reduce services to respond to
| ost revenues. He predicted the |egislation would encourage | ocal
governnments to consider alternative revenue sources. He estimated
there is a "significant anount of people” who "think we ought to
spread the burden" of governnment funding to nore than just property
owners.

Co-Chair Donl ey requested the Departnment of Revenue comment before
the Conmmttee adopt the commttee substitute. He opined that this
legislation is a "substantive issue”" and a "major policy
consideration"” as far as it affects the state's ability to collect
revenue.

Co-Chair Kelly noted an attenpt was underway to reach a
representative of the departnent to join the neeting.

Co- Chair Donl ey pointed out there are other boroughs that may "find
this an opportunity to significantly increase their ability to tax
oil and gas property or other properties that may be at the expense
of the state."” Because of this, he stressed there are other
consi derati ons besides the FNSB.

Senator Therriault addressed the fiscal note, saying the original
fiscal note projected a possible inpact of $1.6 mllion on the
state treasury if all local governnments that currently exercise the
$10,000 property tax exenption took full advantage of the
provisions in the bill and increased the exenption to $50,000. He
stressed that he does not think this would happen and i nstead,
| ocal governnments would consider other revenue sources. He also
noted the proposed conmttee substitute reduces the exenption
anount to $40,000 in part to address these concerns. He understood
Co-Chair Donley's desire to hear from the Departnment of Revenue,

SFC- 01 (9) 03/ 19/ 01



but Senator Therriault did not think the departnent could
accurately predict the inpact to the state treasury since the
| anguage i s perm ssive rather than mandatory.

Senator Therriault stated that |ocal governnents and the state
could offset reduced revenues with a sales tax, user fees or
cutting expenditures and increased efficiencies.

Senator Ward shared that currently the Kenai Peninsula Borough
(KPB) taxes the refineries and the petroleumindustry in N kiski.
Ni ki ski, he pointed out, does not have a local service area with
the exception of fire service and there has been debate whether to
form sone type of |ocal governnent. He asked what would be the
inmpact if a local service area in N kiski were not fornmed and the
revenue needed to be increased in that area. He predicted the | ocal
government woul d i ncrease taxes to the petroleumindustry to of fset
the lost revenue. He stressed this would actually inpact the
enpl oyees of the industry.

Senator Therriault responded saying if |ocal governnent decided to
raise the ml rate on those oil and gas properties, it would have
to raise those property taxes on all property including houses and
stores. He explained that oil and gas properties could not be taxed
at a different rate than other properties. He continued that if a
service area forned and levied a one-m | property tax to provide
for the service area functions, exercising of the exenption option
of this commttee substitute would not inpact the revenues derived
fromthe one-m| tax.

Senat or Ward shared that it was unclear whether the comunity of
Ni ki ski was ready to forma service area. He asked if the service
area were not fornmed and the borough chose to inplenent the
exenption, if the petroleumindustry would have to pay.

Senator Therriault answered this would be correct if the borough
decided to increase the general governnent m | rate.

Senat or Ward remarked that the KPB seens to consider this first.
Senator Therriault repeated that a ml| rate increase wuld raise
taxes for all property owers and that the matter would have to go
before the voters.

Senator Ward thought the KPB would decide to reduce services
instead of raising the m| rate.

Senator Green wanted to know if there is any crossover inplication
to the education foundation funding formula and whether the

SFC-01 (10) 03/19/01



Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent shoul d be consult ed.

Senator Therriault did not think there would be an inpact on
education funding, noting that the Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnment has not submtted a fiscal note to the bill

NADI NE HARGESHI EMER, Fairbanks North Star Borough, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks in support of the bill. She rel ayed
the increased exenption option would be helpful as the borough
seeks alternative sources of revenue. She infornmed that the FNSB
operates under a revenue cap. She noted the formation of an
alternative revenue commi ssion to investigate sources of revenue.
She expressed the intent is to match any additional revenue agai nst
reductions to residential property taxes.

Ms. Hargeshi emer stated that service areas have separate tax rates
borough-wide and if the residential tax exenption was applied to
service areas, those areas would | ose revenue. As a result she said
the burden coul d be placed on conmmercial entities and undevel oped
parcel s that would not qualify for the exenption. She renarked that
t he borough does not want to do this nor would it be "politically
pal atabl e.” Therefore, she said omtting the service areas fromthe
property tax exenption the ml| rates would not need to be raised
for the conmmercial and other nonresidential property.

Ms. Hargeshi emer next pointed out that current state |law all ows the
borough to tax the Alyeska Pipeline up to 20 mls. She said that if
the borough's ml| rate is less than 20, the difference goes to the
state.

Ms. Hargeshi ener then addressed the inpact of this |egislation on
education funding, saying the FNSB is required by |law to provide at
| east four mls but actually provides 8.83 mls. She stated that
she did not see howthis residential property tax exenption would
i npact education funding since the borough currently provides nore
t han doubl e the requirenent.

Ms. Hargeshienmer recognized there mght be other issues wth
di fferent boroughs, but pointed out the tax exenption is optional
and requires voter approval. She expressed the FNSB funds the
existing level of services "in a way that mnakes sense for
everybody. "

Senator Therriault referenced a letter addressed to himfrom the
Al aska Muni ci pal League dated February 7, 2001 in support of the
bill. [Copy on file.]

Co- Chair Donley noted the Departnment of Revenue fiscal note does

SFC-01 (11) 03/19/01



not apply to the proposed conmttee substitute and Senator G een's
request for input from the Department of Education and Early
Devel opnent. He stated that he would like an analysis of the
commttee substitute from both departnents.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the four-m | requirenent for education
funding is based on the assessed value of the borough property
regardl ess of any exenptions.

Senator W1 ken answered that the four-mls is based on the state
assessed full and true val ue before exenption.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Division of Coonmunity and Busi ness
Devel opnent, Departnment of Comrunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnent,
testified via teleconference from Anchorage as the drafter of the
original Departnment of Revenue fiscal note. He affirned that the
fiscal note assunmed the exenption would increase to $50,000 and
al so assuned that all nunicipalities currently operating with a
residential exenption would adopt the maxi num $50, 000 exenption. He
continued that the fiscal note al so assunmed that the nunicipalities
with oil and gas properties would increase their ml| rate to nake
up for the lost revenues and thus cause a reduction of state
revenue of $1.6 mllion. He stressed this assunes that no other
revenue woul d be used by local nunicipalities. He qualified that if
Fai rbanks instituted a sales tax there would be a reduction on the
state inpact.

M. Van Sant addressed the possible effect on education funding
summari zing that this |legislation would not have a nmaj or inpact.

M. Van Sant then spoke to the provision in Section 1 regarding
exenpt residents selling their residence in the mddle of the year
to a nonqualified buyer. He interpreted the | anguage to read that
the senior citizen would not get an exenption in that year.

Co- Chair Donl ey nmaintained his objection. He supported the change
from "shall" to "may" in Section 1 but suggested it could be
addressed as an anendnent. He al so suggested that Section 2 be
consi dered as an anmendnent rather than in a commttee substitute.
AT EASE 10: 14 AM/ 10:16 AM

Senator WIlken WTHDREW his notion to adopt the commttee
substitute, Version "P*" as a working draft. There was no objecti on.

Co-Chair Kelly requested the sponsor work to address the concerns
rai sed.

SFC-01 (12) 03/19/01



Senator Therriault agreed to neet with nenbers in order to
understand the concerns, but expressed that nost of the concerns
are addressed in the proposed conmttee substitute or by the | ocal
voter control

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.
#SB137

SENATE BI LL NO. 137

"An Act relating to the allocation of noney appropriated to
the Al aska Human Resource |nvestnent Council; and providing
for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

MARY JACKSON, staff to Senator Torgerson, testified that this bil
extends the first year funding provision, or allocation provision,
of the previous legislative session's SB 289. She detailed that the
provi sion allocated funding for the newly created programthrough
the University of Alaska, the Kotzebue Technical Center and the
Al aska Vocational and Techni cal Center (AVTC) because the program
itself was not yet established in a manner to receive funding.

Ms. Jackson shared that these institutions provide technical and
vocati onal progranms in both urban and rural areas of Al aska. She
stated that a review of the uses of the funds, "showed how
necessary those funds were.” She referred to supporting
docunent ati on from AVTC.

Ms. Jackson explained that these funds allow the institutions to
"properly prepare” for the influx of new students into their
systens.

Co- Chair Donley asked if the funds for this programcone fromthe
Unenpl oynment | nsurance (U) fund.

Co-Chair Kelly affirned.
Anendnent #1: This anendnent to Section 1 (a), page 1, lines 12-14,

changes the distribution of the allocations between the three
vocational technical facilities as foll ows.

Del et e:
University of Al aska 52 percent
Kot zebue Techni cal Center 16 percent

SFC-01 (13) 03/19/01



Al aska Vocati onal Technical Center 32 percent

| nsert:
University of Al aska 67 percent
Kot zebue Techni cal Center 11 percent
Al aska Vocati onal Technical Center 22 percent

Senat or W1l ken noved for adoption.
Senat or Austerman objected for the purpose of discussion.

Senator Wl ken stated this anendnent corrects a drafting error. He
said that the existing percentage breakdown was a part of SB 289
and was determned by the intent to allocate $1 mllion to AVIC and
$500, 000 to Kot zebue Technical Center, with the remainder allocated
to the University of Al aska system He said the percentage change
is necessary to continue funding the sane fixed anounts to AVTC and
Kot zebue Trai ning Center.

Ms. Jackson stated that the sponsor supports the amendnent.

Senator Leman asked if the intent is to fund the technical centers
a fixed anount then why percentages were listed in the |anguage
instead of the allocations. He predicted changes would continue to
be necessary in future years.

Ms. Jackson replied, "The dollar values are always going to be
approxi mate" She explained the actual allocation to AVIC the
previ ous year was $1,032,000 and the projected anpbunt for the
current year is $1,001,000 out of a total allocation to the program
of $4.5 million.

Senator Leman again asked why the |anguage contains the
per cent ages, which require changing.

Ms. Jackson answered that the previous allocation was not for the
“"full funding year"” due to the inception of the program after the
fiscal year began

Senator Lenman asked if the expectation were therefore that the
anended percentage anmounts woul d be accurate in future years.

Ms. Jackson affirnmed.

Senat or Green expressed that she did not support the project the
previ ous session and woul d not support it again this year either.
She opined, "I think it's a msdirection of funds that were very
clearly laid out how they were supposed to be used." She stressed
that this legislation "goes totally against” the U program

SFC-01 (14) 03/19/01



Senator Austerman renoved his objection to adoption of the
amendnent .

Senator O son stated the U fund is an enployer contribution
intended to have "a positive action”™ on enployees. He did not
understand why the University of Al aska was receiving the "lion’s
share” of the funds for this program He predicted the university
woul d continue to receive |larger percentages of this fund and woul d
eventual |y expect to receive all of the funds. He stressed that the
enphasis of the programis for vocational and technical training
and that the percentage shifts would take away from the origina
intention. He spoke of the preparations for a gas pipeline and the
need to train Al askans throughout the state for the jobs this
project would bring. He saw this anendnent as reducing funding for
"the only technical institution in ny area." As a result, he stated
that he objected to its adoption.

Senator O son opined this anendnent "polarizes", "separates the
haves fromthe have-nots" and causes "a bigger burden to be pl aced
upon those of us that are already overburdened by the |ack of
avai lability of training."

Senat or O son expressed that the intent of the legislature is to
provi de a consensus and "a nore even playing field." He saw this
amendnent as divi si ve.

Co-Chair Kelly noted that the funds would be directed to vocati onal
pursuits and therefore be used to help Al askans develop the
necessary skills for jobs, such as with the proposed gas pipeline.
He stressed that this anmendnment does not change the anount
originally intended for the wuniversity, but rather corrects
| anguage to allowit.

Senator W/ ken explained that the anmpbunt funded the program the
previ ous year was only enough to fund three-fourths of the year
because the program started after the fiscal year had begun.

Senator O son understood this, but stressed the need to provide
training in rural areas of the state.

Co-Chair Kelly recalled the original intent was to provide funding
to the vocational training centers and that this anmendnent
continues to do this.

Senat or Hof fman suggested that the intent of the programis to

provide training for jobs in technical areas and that the
university is an institution of higher learning. He said the

SFC-01 (15) 03/19/01



question is actually whether the allocation to the university is
appropri ate.

Senat or Green rem nded that there was "great heated debate" on SB
289 during the previous session about the nethod of changing the
use of the U funds. She remarked, "That’s not what this noney was
intended for, it's not why the noney was collected. It was not go
to institutions. It was to got to individuals who had specific
needs."” Wile she understood the fund has a surplus, she argued
that this noney should go to individuals. She stated that SB 289
was "supposed to be a one-year budget fix."

Co-Chair Kelly did not remenber SB 189 as a "one-year budget fix."

Senator Green asked if it was not, why the issue was before the
Committee this session.

Co-Chair Kelly recalled the original discussions included
statenents that the programwould be on-going.

Senator W/l ken also did not renenber the program as a "one-year
budget fix." He stressed that funding for this program is not
collected fromthe enpl oyee but rather fromthe enpl oyer's matching
funds. He found it appropriate to train unenpl oyed workers so they
could qualify for other jobs, which would be an appropriate use of
U funds. He added that the University of Alaska is included in the
program because it has a "statewide reach.” He noted that while
AVTC and Kot zebue Training Center are located in two rural areas,
there are canpuses of the University of Alaska in several nore
rural comunities. He pointed out that University of Al aska
Presi dent Ham | ton understands the need to provide vocational and
techni cal training.

Co-Chair Kelly stated, "There is no reallocation of dollars from
one institution to another." He stressed that this is a technical

anendnent. He reiterated that the university is the statew de
entity able to funnel these funds into rural Al aska for vocationa

trai ni ng.

Senat or Austerman asked for a breakdown of how the university spent
the funds allocated to it for this program

Co-Chair Kelly stated this information is available on the
| nternet.

Senat or Green expressed, "the university [has] done a fine job"

with the funds allocated for this program She cited the "nmjor
enphasi s" at the Mt-Su canpus on vocational technical studies.

SFC-01 (16) 03/19/01



However she repeated that the intended use of the U fund was not
for institutions, but rather to individuals with specific needs.
She stated that the funds could be given to unenpl oyed workers to
pay for tuition at one of the institutions.

Co- Chair Donley renenbered the argument that was held during the
Senate debate on SB 289 the previous session regardi ng enpl oyer-
mat chi ng funds conprising the allocation to this program He asked
for an explanation of how the source of these funds affects the
"bottom line." He understood that the "bottom |line" is nobney
avail able to pay benefits to unenpl oyed Al askans who contributed to
the fund. He surm sed that using U funds for the vocational and
technical training prograns would reduce the anount available to
unenpl oyed Al askans regardl ess of whether the funds were collected
fromthe enployer contribution or the enpl oyees.

Senator Wl ken recalled a chart referenced during the previous
di scussi ons, which he no | onger possessed. He renenbered that the
unenpl oynment benefits were based on the demand of the avail able
noney. He explained that the funds allocated to the vocationa
technical training program are "over and above" the demand and
woul d not affect the benefits. He qualified that in the previous
session, the Departnent of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent warned
that using the excess amobunt in the fund for other purposes woul d
affect benefits. He remarked that this was found to be untrue and
that the excess bal ance has grown despite the w thdrawal of funds
for the vocational technical training program

Co-Chair Donley stated that it does not matter whether the funds
allocated to the vocational and technical training program cone
fromthe enpl oyee or the enpl oyer share of the paynents to the U
fund. He expressed that any usage of the fund for other purposes
affects the anount avail able to pay unenpl oynent benefits. He said
this is because of the presupposition that the status quo is the
proper policy call. He stated that the anount paid unenpl oyed
workers in benefits is "some of the nost m serabl e | acki ng benefits
in the nation.” He suggested that the policy should actually be
whet her to increase the anpunt of benefit paynents or direct the
funds to other projects such as the vocational and technical
trai ni ng program

Senat or W1 ken di sagreed and enphasi zed that the anmount all ocated
fromthe U fund to the vocational and technical training program
is excess noney in that fund, which constitutes a reserve. He
stated that Co-Chair Donley s suggestion to increase benefit
paynents would need to be addressed as separate |egislation.
Senator Wl ken admtted that while it could be stated that Al aska
has "m serable” unenploynent insurance, the state has other

SFC-01 (17) 03/19/01



"extraordi nary" benefits that conpensate for this.

Co- Chair Donley argued that the benefit paynent issue is directly
relevant to the |legislation before the Commttee. This, he stressed
i s because other usage of the U funds "cuts off the availability,"
or inpedes the flexibility to inprove the benefits paid to
uni nsured Al askans.

Senator W1 ken countered the bill does not address the possibility
of using enployer and enployee contributions to the U fund to
i ncrease the anobunt of benefits paid to individuals. He stressed
that this bill allocates funds collected "over and above" the
anount paid out in benefits and establishes the anbunt of reserve
funds necessary.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed Co-Chair Donley's concern is a subject for
another bill. He explained that the existing structure of the U
fund enabl es paynents for vocational prograns w thout inpacting the
benefits paid to individuals.

Senator W/l ken noted that the matter is conplicated, just as it was
when it was first discussed the prior year. He asked that the
Depart ment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent explain the issues.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD until later in the hearing.
The notion to adopt Anendnent #1 remained on the table.
#SB6
CS FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 6(L&C)
"An Act relating to required notice of eviction to nobile hone
park dwel |l ers and tenants before redevel opnent of the park.”
This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

SENATOR JOHNNY ELLIS testified this legislation increases the
notification requirenent when residents are evicted from nobile
hone parks from 180 days under the l|andlord-tenant law, to 365
days. He noted that the legislation allows for a shorter notice
period in which the landlord pays $5,000 for relocation fees. He
pointed out that this matter was brought to him by Archbishop
Francis Hurley and Dennis McMIlian of the United WAy as a result
of a task force convened to address the "scores of famlies
becom ng honel ess” and subsequent pressures on the "social safety
net" caused by redevel opnents of nobile hone parks.

SFC-01 (18) 03/19/01



Senator Ellis shared that Senator Leman supports this bill and has
suggested statutes providing a vehicle for "pooling of resources”
to help cover the various relocation costs to nultiple residents in
a nobile honme park. Senator Ellis explained that wunder this
provi sion, the devel oper could provide a set anount of funds to a
non- profit entity for rel ocation costs. The non-profit
organi zati on, he continued would all ocate funds based on need.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if Senator Leman's proposal woul d be addressed
as a commttee substitute.

Senator Ellis was unsure if Senator Lenan wanted to offer an
anmendnent or a committee substitute.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Commttee.
#SB137

SB 137- ALASKA HUVAN RESOURCE | NVESTMENT COUNCI L

[ The Comm ttee continued deliberations fromearlier in the hearing.
A notion to adopt Amendnent #1 remai ned on the table.]

Co-Chair Donley restated his objection to the bill as the sane
reason he voted against simlar |legislation the previous year. He
expressed that this legislation utilizes funds that would "nore
appropriately” be used in inproving the unenploynment benefits to
t hose workers who have paid into the system He asserted that this
is the "purpose of the systenf and that the current benefit
schedule is "sub par" and does not adequately conpensate unenpl oyed
workers. He noted that the intended purposes contained in the
| egi sl ati on are wort hy.

Co-Chair Kelly rem nded that the Conm ttee debate has been whet her
this bill could adversely affect the potential to increase
unenpl oynent paynents.

SENATOR JOHN TORGERSON affirmed Co-Chair Donley's assertion that
this legislation "intercepts” unenploynment insurance (U) funds.
Senator Torgerson listed this anount as one-tenth of one percent of
the anmount paid into the fund by the enpl oyee. He renmarked that the
U trust fund is "the nost lucrative it has been in the history of
our state" with a balance of approximtely $220 nmillion. He said
t he average bal ance is between $160 mllion and $180 mllion. He
noted there is other legislation before this |egislature that would
increase the U benefits. He stressed that if at any tine the
benefits need exceeds the balance of the U trust, the enployer

SFC-01 (19) 03/19/01



woul d pay the difference. Therefore, he assured that the trust is
never conprom sed.

Senat or Torgerson nade the case that by providing funding for
training facilities the nunber of workers reliant on U benefits is
reduced. In fact, he pointed out, these workers were instead
enpl oyed and therefore contributing to the U fund. He noted that
this theory was also agreed upon when establishing the State
Trai ni ng Enpl oynent Program (STEP) several years earlier and as a
result, the bal ance of the trust increased.

Senat or Ward referenced the anendnent and asked if its necessity
was caused by a mstake in SB 289, which set the original
al | ocati on percent ages.

Senat or Torgerson replied, "this was actually driven by noney" and
that his intention was to allocate $3 mllion to the University of
Al aska. He stated this was because the House of Representatives did
not fund the full request in the FY 01 operati ng budget. He noted
that other |egislation was pending that could have acconplished
this, but that SB 289 was chosen to al so provide funds to AVTEC and
Kot zebue Technical Center.

Senator Ward asked the projected amount appropriated to the
uni versity under this anmendnent.

Senat or Torgerson answered, $3,051, 046.

SFC 01 # 47, Side A 10:44 AM

Senator Leman requested that the debate return to the anmendnent
before the Conmittee.

Co-Chair Kelly pointed out that the amendnent is a technical
correction, but noted there was objection to the anendnent based
upon the program He enphasi zed that the program continues, whet her
t he amendnent is adopted or not, but warned that if the anmendnent
is not adopted, the program does not continue as intended in SB
289. He surmsed that while this debate could be "healthy" it does
not pertain to the amendnent or the | egislation before the nenbers.
He reiterated that the amendnent adjusts the percentages to reflect
a full fiscal year rather than the three-quarter year funded in the
first year of the program

Senator Leman concluded that this anmendnent is "a fix that is
necessary to get us to where we intend to be." He appreciated

SFC-01 (20) 03/19/01



Senator A son’s comments but disagreed that this takes from the
"have-nots" and gives to the "haves". Senator Lerman did not think
the redistribution was in a manner that would be detrinmental to the
Kot zebue Trai ning Center. He supported the amendnment because it is
consistent to the intent of SB 289. He stated that |ike Co-Chair
Donl ey and Senator Green, he objected to the use of the U funds
for an education programin the previous session and that he voted
against the original legislation. He qualified that he did not
oppose fundi ng vocational technical prograns. However, he stated
that this amendnent is appropriate given that the programis in
pl ace.

Senator dson noved to anend the anendnent, changing the
percentages to 61 percent to the University of Al aska, 13 percent
to the Kotzebue Technical Center and 26 to the Al aska Vocati ona
Technical Center. He said he offered this as a conprom se saying it
woul d provide a 40 percent increase to each institution.

Co-Chair Kelly understood the anendnent as stated but did not think
it gave a 40 percent increase over what was requested in the prior
year.

Senat or Torgerson pointed out that the Kotzebue Training Center is
estimated to receive $516,000 wunder the previous year's
appropriation and would receive $500,019 in the current year. He
continued that AVTC was projected to receive $1, 032,000 and woul d
receive $1,001,000. He suggested that the percentages could be
changed slightly to make up for these reductions. He stressed that
the intent is to provide the sane anount to each facility as in the
prior year and for the university to receive the maxi num anount
possi bl e.

Co-Chair Kelly stated that because the actual anount would
fluctuate every year, he did not support adjusting the percentages
based on the previous year's funding.

Aroll call was taken on the notion to anmend the anendnent.

I N FAVOR: Senat or Hof fman and Senat or O son

OPPOSED: Senator W/ ken, Senator Austerman, Senator Lenan, Senator
Ward, Co-Chair Donley and Co-Chair Kelly

ABSENT: Senat or G een
The notion FAILED (2-6-1)

The amendnent FAILED to be adopt ed.

SFC-01 (21) 03/19/01



Senator Leman expressed that Senator Torgerson raised a
"conpelling" argunment in that these nunbers are not exact and
suggested that a one-half percent adjustnent woul d acconplish this.
He surm sed changing the Kotzebue Training Center percentage to
11.5, changing the AVIC percentage to 22.5 and the University of
Al aska percentage to 66, would achi eve the sanme fundi ng anmounts for
each of the three facilities.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed that although this m ght nake the anmounts
the sane as the previous year, they would be different in future
years. He did not recommend adjusting the percentages to align
exactly with the previous year's anounts, but rather supported
establ i shing a percentage breakdown.

Senator Torgerson affirmed that the actual anmobunts are fluctuating
dependi ng on the amount paid into the U trust fund.

Senator Leman stated that he would no offer this as an anendnent to
t he anendment.

Aroll call was taken on the notion to adopt the anendnent.

IN FAVOR: Senator Leman, Senator Ward, Senator W /I ken, Senator
Aust erman, Co-Chair Donley and Co-Chair Kelly

OPPCSED: Senat or Hof f man and Senator O son
ABSENT: Senat or G een

The notion PASSED (6-2-1)

The anmendnent was ADOPTED

Co-Chair Donley stated that there was confusion as to whether this
bill is necessary in order to extend the program He referred to
the sponsor statenent; ".SB 137 extends the date of the direct
all ocations to naned institutions for two nore years." He asked if
the bill acconplishes two functions, adjust the percentage |evels
and al so extend the effect of SB 289 for two years.

Senat or Torgerson responded that SB 289 established a grant program
that would be given to accredited institutions in A aska based upon
grant criteria. He stated that he introduced the current
| egi sl ati on because the Departnent of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnment has not issued any regulations, nor has the Al aska
Human Resource Investnment Council (AHRIC) taken steps to issue
these grants. Henceforth, he remarked, this |legislation provides a
direct grant to the three institutions, rather than require the
institutions apply for the grants.

SFC-01 (22) 03/19/01



Co-Chair Donley asked how this Ilegislation wth the set
percentages, relates to the operating budget. He noted that because
it does not set specific anmounts, it is not an appropriations bill.
He wanted to know if it is a guide or fornmula to be used when
preparing the operating budget.

Senat or Torgerson replied that this |egislation has nothing to do
wi th the operating budget and that a forthcom ng fiscal note wll
reflect the percentage breakdowns to each institution.

Co-Chair Donley referred to an outdated zero fiscal note that
stated the bill appropriates $4.5 nillion to the program

REMOND HENDERSON, Director, Division of Admnistrative Services,
Department of Labor and Workforce Devel opnent, testified that a
fiscal note would be necessary to appropriate the intended $4.5
mllion into the departnent's budget. This, he stated is because
the funds are not included in the budget under the House of
Representative's version of the FY 02 operating budget. He adm tted
that this request should have been submtted with the governor's
proposed operating budget but was omtted. He stressed that if this
bill passes without the related fiscal note, the departnent would
not have the necessary $4.5 nmillion to issue in grants to the three
i nstitutions.

Senator Torgerson stated his intent to reflect the funds in a
fiscal note in the event that the governor vetoes the bill. He
explained that if the veto occurred, the funds would not be
avail able for the departnent to expend ot herwi se and woul d be held
for future appropriation.

Co-Chair Kelly announced the Conmmttee would wait for a proper
fiscal note.

Senat or Torgerson offered to wite the fiscal note.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.
#

ADJ QURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 10:58 AM

SFC-01 (23) 03/19/01



